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Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Conm ssi on
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR Cvil Penalty Proceedi ng
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. WEVA 81-186
PETI TI ONER A/ O No. 46-05121-03038F
V.
Wayne M ne

MONTEREY COAL COMPANY,
RESPONDENT

DECI SI ON APPROVI NG SETTLEMENT
AND
ORDERI NG PAYMENT OF CI VI L PENALTY

Appearances: Edward H Fitch, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor, US.
Departnment of Labor, Arlington, Virginia, for the
Petitioner;
Tinmothy M Biddle, Esq., Crowell & Mring, Washington,
D.C., for the Respondent.

Bef or e: Judge Cook

On January 22, 1981, the Secretary of Labor (Petitioner)
filed a petition for assessnent of civil penalty in the
above- capti oned case pursuant to section 110(a) of the Federal
M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C. 0801 et seq.
(Supp. I'I'l 1979) (Act). The petition charges Mnterey Coal
Conmpany (Respondent) with a violation of mandatory safety
standard 30 C.F.R 075.1726(b) in that:

It was reveal ed during the investigation of a fatal
acci dent, based upon sworn testinony and evi dence
observed at the scene of the accident that the victim
and continuous m ner operator were perform ng the work
of eval uati ng damage sustained to the m ner under the
ri pper head that was not bl ocked in the el evated
position in the No. 2 entry, on the Intake M ns
Section (001), being developed in the direction of the
I ntake Airshaft.

An answer was filed, the case was consolidated with the
associ ated notice of contest proceeding in Docket No. VEVA
80-322-R, a prehearing order was issued, and the matter was
schedul ed for hearing. Various notions seeking approval of
settlenent were filed on May 8, 1981,
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Septenber 1, 1981, and Septenber 8, 1981. The settl enent
proposed in the Septenmber 8, 1981, filing is identified as
fol | ows:

30 CF.R
Order No. Dat e st andar d Assessnent Sett| ement
675312 3/ 19/ 80 75. 1726(b) $1, 000 $1, 000

Information as to the six statutory criteria contained in
section 110 of the Act has been submitted. This information
found in Docket Nos. WEVA 80-322-R and WEVA 81-186, has provi ded
a full disclosure of the nature of the settlenent and the basis
for the original determ nation. Thus, the parties have conplied
with the intent of the |law that settlenent be a matter of public
record. The various filings submtted by the parties are set
forth bel ow

On May 8, 1981, the Petitioner filed a notion requesting
approval of a $500 settlement which stated, in part, as foll ows:

This case involves one violation of 30 CFR 75.1726(b)
whi ch was originally assessed a penalty of $1,000. The
Secretary has determ ned, based on the attached letter
filed by counsel for Monterey, that a voluntary penalty
paynment of $500 is an appropriate resolution of the
conflict involved in this matter.

As a condition of the settlenment Monterey has agreed to
withdraw its notice of contest involving this citation
in Docket No. WEVA 80-322-R

The violation involves the fatality of a maintenance
foreman who, know ng repair work was bei ng done on the
hydraulic hose, failed to block a miner ripper head
bef ore reachi ng under the ripper head. The victim
apparently did not believe the ripper head woul d fal
when the hose was di sconnected. Blocking material was
present in the imredi ate area, and the victim being a
foreman, shoul d have been the individual nost
responsi ble for conplying at that instant with the
standard cited in the citation involved in this

pr oceedi ng.

VWil e the Secretary does not adopt the contents of
counsel's letter, it is clear to the Secretary that the
settlenent is consistent with the remedi al purposes of
the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, and is
in the range of a penalty the Secretary woul d expect to
be assessed if the case proceeded to a hearing on the
nerits.

The attached letter fromcounsel for the Respondent stated,
in part, as foll ows:
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The deceased, John G oves, was a nai ntenance forenman

at Monterey's Wayne Mne in West Virginia. On March

19, 1980, at about 10:45 p.m, Goves and a m ner

operator named W/ bur were changing bits on the ripper

head of a continuous m ning machi ne whi ch was de-

energi zed and parked in an intersection.[ FOOTNOTE. 1] The
ri pper head was el evated approximately 3-4 feet as they
performed that task. At the sane tine, two repairnmen were
preparing to change an O-ring at a fitting on a hose which
was part of the hydraulic systemfor the right support jack
of the ripper head. As they changed bits, Goves and W] bur
noti ced sone fluid | eakage under the ripper head. G oves
began to peer under the ripper head to figure out where the
fluid was com ng from

According to the testinony given during the MSHA

acci dent investigation, one of the repairnmen, Robert
Burress, wal ked around to the front of the mner prior
to di sconnecting a hydraulic hose to replace the Oring
and told G oves that he was going to have to take the
hose off. He recalls specifically telling Goves that
he was afraid the jack would let the ripper head down
when he di sconnected the hose. According to Burress,

G oves told himto go ahead and di sconnect the hose
because a safety valve would hold the ripper head in an
el evated position. Burress returned to the side of the
machi ne and di sconnected the hose. Wen he

di sconnected it, the ripper head fell on G oves who had
i nexplicably craw ed part way under the ripper head,
apparently to get a closer look at the fluid leak. It
was clear fromthe testinony of the w tnesses that

G oves did not believe the ripper head would fall when
Burress di sconnected the hose. Unfortunately, G oves
was wong and paid for the mstake with his life.

Several factors suggest a | ower penalty would be nore
appropriate than the $1,000 assessed. First, Goves
was a mai ntenance foreman who had an inpeccabl e safety
record and who was characterized by the w tnesses as
bei ng "safety conscious.” Mnterey has records to show
that Groves was trained specifically in the requirenent
for bl ocking rai sed equi pmrent. G oves signed a
statenment of conpany policy to that effect. Mreover,
G oves hinself had instructed m ners in bl ocking
procedures. Wtnesses confirmed that G oves knew how
to bl ock equipnent; in fact he had denonstrated this by
usi ng bl ocki ng procedures only three days prior to the
accident. On the day of the accident, there was no

i npedi ment to bl ocking the el evated ri pper head.

Wboden bl ocks provided for that purpose were | ocated
near the scene of the accident.
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The inspector who issued the Order follow ng the investigation
stated on MSHA Form 7000-4 (his "worksheet"):

"It is relevant to note that the victimwas a
supervi sor of equi pnent mai nt enance and was
trained in hydraulics, block [sic] of equipnent,
etc. and has instructed mners in the
aforenmentioned at this mne. Aso, it was
reveal ed during the investigation that the victim
assi sted other nmechanics in blocking up the ripper
head of the mner a few shifts prior to the

acci dent, which indicated that he was

know edgeabl e of the related hazards. * * * The
fatal act committed by the victimwas strictly
contrary to the company policy in effect, the

i nstructions he had been given and instructions
and/ or training he had given the mners. * * *
The managenent personnel and mners denonstrated
an outstanding attitude and was [sic] very
cooperative in helping to obtain all the
surroundi ng facts of this fatal accident."

The circunstances of this tragic fatality indicate
truly idiosyncratic conduct on the part of the foreman
who was killed. | cannot discern anything Mnterey
could have done differently to prevent the accident.
The acci dent occurred because of the inexplicable
conduct of an experienced and safety consci ous

mai nt enance foreman who was trying to do his job and
apparently believed he was doing it safely. While we
recogni ze the Act mandates strict liability, under the
pecul i ar circunstances of this accident no legitimte
pur pose woul d be served by penalizing the conpany wth
a penalty assessnment of $1, 000.

On July 23, 1981, an order was issued denying the
Petitioner's May 8, 1981, notion for approval of settlenment. The
order stated, in part, that:

[T]he information contained in the official case files
in Docket No. WEVA 81-186 and Docket No. WEVA 80-322-R
t he associated notice of contest case, presently

i ndi cates that the continuous mner operator was under
the raised ripper head of the machine, and thereby
exposed to danger, while under the direct supervision
and control of the maintenance foreman shortly prior to
the occurrence of the accident which clained the

mai nt enance foreman's life.

On Septenber 1, 1981, the Respondent filed a notion for
reconsi deration of settlenent denial stating, in part, as
fol | ows:
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Respondent Monterey Coal Conpany respectfully submits this Mtion
to provide the presiding Judge with additional information about
the actions of the continuous mner operator inmmediately prior to
t he acci dent.

As explained in the Solicitor's Motion to Approve
Settlement, Monterey was cited for a violation of 30
C.F.R 075.1726(b) after the occurrence of an accident
at Monterey's Wayne M ne which killed a mai nt enance
foreman. The information provided herewi th suppl enents
the information provided in the Solicitor's Mdtion to
Approve Settlement.

In an effort to provide the presiding Judge with
conplete information with respect to the activities of
the m ner operator, who was hel ping the deceased

mai nt enance foreman determ ne the |ocation of a fluid
| eak under the continuous m ning nmachi ne, counsel for
Mont erey has reviewed Monterey's transcripts of the
accident investigation interview conducted by MSHA
shortly after the accident, reviewed MSHA and State of
West Virginia accident reports, studied Mnterey's
reports of the accident and, on August 28, 1981

i nterviewed the m ner operator who witnessed the
accident, M. David WI bur.

Both the Order of Wthdrawal and the MSHA Form 7000-4
(I'nspectors Statenment) reflect the issuing inspector's
belief that M. WI bur was under the ripper head (the
ri pper head was el evated approxi mately 40" off the

m ne floor before it fell) with the maintenance forenman
i mediately prior to the accident. The O der of

Wt hdrawal reads, in part:

It was reveal ed during the investigation of a
fatal accident, based upon sworn testinony and

evi dence observed at the scene of the accident
that the victimand continuous m ner operator were
perform ng the work of eval uating danage sustai ned
to the m ner under the ripper head that was not

bl ocked in an el evated position...

The inspector's statenment reads, in part:

It is worthy to note the m ner operator was under
the mner ripper head with the victimprior to the
occurrence of the accident, in that the hel per
stepped out from under the head i medi ately prior
to the accident.

Mont erey believes the inspector who i ssued the order
and who made the statenent on Form 7000-4 concl uded
that the miner operator was under the ripper head based
on the interviews
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conducted of the m ner operator shortly after the accident.
Prior to interviewing M. WIbur, the MSHA acci dent

i nvestigation teamintervi ewed several other crew nmenbers
who were present when the accident occurred. None of those
crew menbers were located in a position to see what the
deceased numi ntenance foreman and M. W] bur were doing

i mediately prior to the accident. For instance, the

repai rman who di sconnected a hose coupling which caused the
head of the mining machine to fall testified as foll ows:

DAVIS [MBHA]: Q Did you see [M. Goves, the
mai nt enance foreman] at any time prior to the
accident |ooking in that area where the hose
coupling was to be disconnected?

BURRESS: A No, sir. He was in front of the
mner all the time that | was up there at the
m ner performng that work.

* Kk *

DAVIS: Q Immediately prior to this accident did
you verbally inform M. Goves and M. WI bur who
was working with himin front of the m ner of what
you intended to do in renoving the hose coupling?

BURRESS: A. Yes, sir. | didn't speak directly
to David Wl bur, | spoke directly to John G oves,
but | spoke | oud enough so David WI bur shoul d
have heard it because he was standing close to
John Groves and Lemasters heard what | said to him
and he was back at the jack which is probably

12 ... fromit.

DAVIS: Q \What did you tell themexactly, do you
remenber ?

BURRESS: A. Yes, sir, | said, "John, | tightened
that fitting and the leak won't stop, the oi
ring's broke, 1'mgoing to have to take the hose
off to replace the oil ring and I'mafraid the
head m ght conme down because we don't trust
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t hose safety valves or anything in those heads."
And John says, "OK., it'll stay there." That's
exactly what he said, "OK., it'll stay there."

A few questions later, Burress nmade the foll owi ng statenent:

DAVIS: Q You did not observe their |ocation or
wor k or whatever they were observing and so forth
after you had | ooked up and seen M. G oves
shining his light over top of the ripper head?

BURRESS: A. No, sir, | didn't. The only way I
could have seen what, you know, they m ght have
been doing was to have quit what I was doing and
wal ked around the edge of the head there. As far
as | knew they were through because they had set
all the bits, they were through setting the bits
and | guessed they observed that cut place in
there and wanted to get a closer look at it.
That's the only thing I could figure out, it was
somet hing that wasn't planned to do, you know,
they just went ahead and done it, went ahead and
| ooked at it.

VWhen David W/ bur was interviewed, |Investigator Davis
read into the investigation record a witten statenent
prepared by M. WIlbur followi ng the accident. After
reading into the record part of M. WIbur's account of
the events |l eading up to the accident, the foll ow ng
exchange took pl ace:

DAVIS: [reading statenment of David WI bur]

* * * "] trammed the continuous m ner down
the nunber 2 entry to its present |ocation
which is the accident scene. M and John
Groves started renoving a broken bit hol der
and renmoved a broken bit.'

WLBUR  The hol der wasn't broken, just had a
broke bit init. We took it out.

DAVI S:  Thank you. W observe that it was a bit.
Now |l et me stop just a mnute.
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As | amgoing through this [Wlbur's witten
statenent], anything that should happen to
cone to your mind that you' ve forgotten or
is different, you interrupt ne would you?

[continuing to read Wl bur's statement] W
observed that a bit had damaged the transm ssion
gear case. Lenmasters and Burress were worki ng

on the right side of the mner, that's the
operator's side, replacing and [sic] "O' ring

to the right head jack ("O' ring to the staplel ok
fitting".) John and | were up under the ripper
head about one m nute prior to the accident. |
cal l ed out and then the head fell.’

WLBUR No, | don't think we were all the way up
under it. W were just... we were nore or

| ess leaning under. | don't know exactly how far
we was up under, but we wasn't crawl ed up under
We nore or less leaning there and kind of | eaned
down under it looking at it.

DAVIS: Q But you were, were you positioned
under the confines of the head itself, your body?

WLBUR A | guess we was, yeah, | guess we was,
not all the way but we was under it.

DAVISS Q  Partially?
[ no response]

DAVIS: [continuing to read Wl bur's statenment] "I
called out and then the head fell (at 10:50

p.m)."'

WLBUR | don't knowif | called out then or if
was behind it, | just ain't real clear about
where, | don't know if | was exact behind himor
maybe to the side of him | don't know exactly
what | seen, | remenber turning and calling at
him reaching for him

DAVIS: OK , we will proceed. [continuing to
read Wl bur's statenment] "John G oves
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told me as he was | eaning down under the head that
it was going to have to be welded up. Wen |I seen
it fall 1 was located to the rear of himand about
three feet fromhim'

inthe Wlbur interview, the follow ng exchange took pl ace:

DAVISS Q And, M. WIlbur, at the time that you
were seated under the ripper head -- that was the
ri pper head?

WLBUR A | didn't craw up under it all the
way, | just nore or less |eaned up under it, |
rai sed up and kind of |ooked up under it to see
what needed to be fixed.

DAVIS. Q Wuld that have been fromthe
operator's side that you maybe have | eaned under
the ripper head?

WLBUR A Yes.

DAVIS: Q How much did your body did you project
under the head?

WLBUR A | don't know, | don't know exactly,
just nore or less |ooked up under it to see if it
was broke, the armwas broke or just needed a bolt
or, you know, sonething like that.

DAVIS: Q Did you position, do you recal
[ whet her] you positioned your head or shoul der or
any portion thereof up under it or just maybe your

ar nf?
WLBUR A | don't know, | could have had ny
head under it or sonething, | don't know

DAVIS: Q You're not for sure though, are you?
WLBUR A No, |I'mnot.

M. WIlbur's oral statenent given to undersigned
counsel on August 28, 1981, and which presunmably woul d
reflect his testinmony if this matter nmust go to trial
confirmed his statenments during the accident

i nvestigation interview.
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M. WIlbur said that shortly before the accident occurred,
he and the mai ntenance foreman were bendi ng down side by
side trying to |l ocate the source of a | eak under the

ri pper head near the chassis of the nmachine. He described
their position as "leaning up under" the ripper head. Wen
asked to describe his exact position when they were

"l eani ng up under" the ripper head, M. WIbur said that
he believed that his head m ght have noved slightly under
the forenost part of the ripper head, but not his body.

He said that at no tinme was his body under the ripper

head. When asked whet her he woul d have been killed or
injured if the ripper head had fallen when he was in that
position, M. WIbur said that he wasn't sure but that it
was possible that his head woul d have been grazed.

I mredi ately prior to the accident, M. WIbur noved back

a short distance fromthe ripper head; M. Goves, the
deceased, apparently decided to crawl up and get a

cl oser ook at the |eaking transm ssion case when the

head fell on him

Fromthe series of events which occurred i mediately
prior to the accident, it is clear that the maintenance
foreman believed that the ripper head had a check val ve
whi ch woul d prevent it fromfalling. No "work" in the
usual sense of the word was being performed under the
ri pper head by the maintenance foreman or by M.

Wl bur. Instead, the two of themwere sinply trying to
figure out where a | eak was comng from The

mai nt enance foreman apparently wanted a cl oser | ook, so
he craw ed under the ripper head to see better, M.

W bur was standing close by awaiting his report. At

t hat noment several feet away, M. Burress di sconnected
a hose on the m ning machi ne which rel eased enough
hydraulic pressure to cause the ripper head to fall on
M. Goves. M. WIbur was not injured.

Mont erey believes the facts set forth above are
accurate. Monterey also believes that it would serve
l[ittle purpose to assess a high civil penalty to deter
it fromfuture violations of this nature. As

recogni zed by the MSHA investigation team (and stated
specifically on the Inspector's statenent), Monterey
had a specific conpany rul e which prohibited work on
rai sed equi pnent unless it was bl ocked and had
repeatedly instructed its maintenance personnel to that
effect both orally and in witing. Material to block
the ripper head was | ocated nearby the scene of the
acci dent. The deceased mai ntenance foreman was

descri bed by both crew nmenbers and the conpany as being
highly skilled and safety conscious. He obviously
bel i eved that the ripper head had a check-val ve which
woul d not permt the ripper head to fall, and said so
specifically to M. Burress, who was preparing to

di sconnect the hydraulic hose.
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G ven all these circunstances, Mnterey believes there
woul d be not hing gai ned by going to trial to explore the
uncontested facts associated with this accident. In its
view, the only issue in such a proceedi ng woul d be the
amount of civil penalty that shoul d be assessed based on
the six statutory factors under [0110(i) of the Act. The
two nost inportant factors in this case are gravity and
negl i gence. The gravity of the violation is clear: a
fatality occurred. Negligence is the remaining factor
and Monterey believes it is the sole factor for
consideration in this case. The Congressionial purpose
for requiring assessment of civil penalties on a strict
liability basis is to deter future violations and to
rem nd operators of the high degree of care owed the mners.
Monterey is well aware of its obligation to the m ners and
the requirenent of conplying with the mandatory standards
under the Act. No violation of this nature had occurred at
the m ne before, according to MSHA' s conputer records.
Mont erey had a specific and comuni cated rul e prohibiting
the activity which killed the maintenance foreman. The
deceased foreman was experi enced and had been thoroughly
trained. He made a mistake and paid for it with his life.

Under these circunstances, Mnterey believes that the
anount agreed to by MSHA and by Monterey is appropriate
and consistent with the public interest. It is the
presiding Judge's duty to assure that a settlenment was
not reached for inproper reasons violative of the Mne
Safety Act's objectives. Davis Coal Co., 2 FMBHRC 619
(1980). Monterey believes the facts presented justify
approval of the settlenent as consistent with the

obj ectives of the Act.

The foregoing statenents did not materially change the
foundati on upon which the determ nati on was made that the
proposed $500 settlenment could not be approved. Therefore, an
order was issued on Septenber 2, 1981, denying the Respondent's
notion for reconsideration of settlenment denial

On Septenber 8, 1981, the Petitioner filed a notion
requesting approval of a $1,000 settlenment. The notion states,
in part, as foll ows:

Foll owi ng the Admi nistrative Law Judge's O der Denyi ng
Respondent's Mdtion for Reconsideration of Settlenent

Deni al, issued on Septenber 2, 1981, counsel for the
parties discussed this matter anew on Septenber 3,
1981.

The Respondent has now proposed that these matters be
resol ved by the full payment of the original assessnent
inthis matter, and the voluntary w thdrawal of their
noti ce of contest proceedi ng (WEVA 80-322-R) upon
approval of the resolution of the civil penalty

pr oceedi ng.
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As the terns of the proposed settlement have been changed,
the Secretary now submits this new proposal for settlenent.

The reasons given above by counsel for the parties have been
reviewed in conjunction with the information submtted as to the
Six statutory criteria contained in section 110 of the Act. After
according this information due consideration, it has been found
to support the proposed $1,000 settlenent. It therefore appears
that a disposition approving the settlenment will adequately
protect the public interest.

ORDER

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED that the proposed $1, 000
settlenent, as outlined above, be, and hereby is, APPROVED

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that the March 2, 1981, order
consol i dati ng the proceedi ngs in Docket Nos. WEVA 80-322-R and
WEVA 81-186 for hearing and deci sion be, and hereby is, DI SSOLVED

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat the Respondent, w thin 30 days of
the date of this decision, pay the agreed-upon penalty of $1, 000
assessed in this proceedi ng.

John F. Cook
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
~FOOTNOTE_ONE

The fatal accident investigation report prepared by the
M ne Safety and Health Admi nistration states that the accident
occurred on March 17, 1980.



